Albemarle County Planning Commission
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019

The Albemarle County Planning Commission held a public hearing on Tuesday, September 24,
2019, at 6:00 p.m., at the County Office Building, Lane Auditorium, Second Floor, 401 Mclntire
Road, Charlottesville, Virginia.

Members attending were Tim Keller, Chair; Julian Bivins, Vice-Chair; Daphne Spain; Karen
Firehock; Pam Riley; Jennie More; Bruce Dotson; and Luis Carrazana, UVA representative.

Other officials present were Jodie Filardo, Director of Community Development; Amelia McCulley,
Deputy Director of Community Development; Carolyn Shaffer, Clerk to Planning Commission;
Andrew Knuppel; Rachel Falkenstein; and Andy Herrick.

Call to Order and Establish Quorum
Mr. Keller called the regular meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and established a quorum.
From the Public: Matters Not Listed for Public Hearing on the Agenda
Mr. Keller invited comment from the public on other matters not listed on the agenda.

Mr. Sean Tubbs, Piedmont Environmental Council, noted that that day was the first day of the
official launch of the School of Data Science at the University of Virginia. He said it was a major
addition to the institution and one of the biggest drivers of growth in the community. He said that
according to UVA Today, there will be at least 10 endowed chairs, as well as a number of faculty
and students. He said the question is to what effect this will have on the community’s population.

Mr. Tubbs said that as he has been monitoring land use issues for over a decade in the
community, the forum for those questions to be asked has traditionally been the Planning and
Coordination Council, or PAC. He said many of the commissioners may have attended the PAC
or PAC Tech meetings that have been held. He noted that the PAC hadn’t met since March, and
two meetings were cancelled earlier that year. He said he understood that there was a meeting
planned for October, but there is no official listing of it. He said usually, they meet in November
instead of October, and he was curious as to the change.

Mr. Tubbs said there is also a Master Planning Committee that is not open to the public and not
subject to the same meeting rules that the PAC is. He said as a reporter, he got good stories and
was able to assist the community by covering that meeting on the important matter of regional
growth and how to deal with it.

Mr. Tubbs said that in June, a member of the City Planning Commission (who sits on the Master
Planning Committee) had reported that over the next 7-10 years, UVA is expecting a 15% growth.
He said he was alerted by this number and said it would be consistent with growth trends over
the years. He said that when he looked at the forecasts that UVA had submitted to the State
Council of Higher Education, he found out it projects flat enrollment growth for undergraduates.
He asked how this could be possible when there is a new school and general attrition in the
community.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 1
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



Mr. Tubbs explained that this is why he brought up PAC, as he hoped that this public body
continues to exist into the future. He said that as questions are asked, there are big issues. He
said the three-party agreement was a major landmark decision back in 1986 and offered a
tradition where the three communities work together. He said he would like to know what the
future of the PAC is.

Consent Agenda
There was no consent agenda.
Work Session

2019 Growth Management Report

Mr. Knuppel said this first take on the 2019 Growth Management Report followed in the footsteps
of the annual report that the commission previously saw in February and March of 2019. He said
that the last time the commission saw staff’'s capacity analysis for the residential buildout of the
development areas was about two years ago. He expressed staff's excitement for bringing forth
a new format to the report and looked forward to having a positive discussion with the commission
about it.

Mr. Knuppel said the presentation would include a section about tying the report back to the
Comprehensive Plan, as well as to why the analysis is done and the intent of the report. He said
he would provide an overview of the report’s contents and recent trends (which was a new addition
to the capacity analysis that year). He said the presentation would cover the revised model and
changes made to the methodology to determine how to address changing needs and market
conditions and how to better leverage the data and capacity staff has in-house. He said he would
also present findings and implications in the report and hold an opportunity for questions,
comments, and discussion.

Mr. Knuppel noted that the presentation was for informational purposes and that there was no
action required by the Planning Commission that evening. He said that since the analysis was
complete, staff wanted to be sure the report was put before the commission for its review and
consideration.

Mr. Knuppel reviewed the reason why the report and capacity analysis is done every two years.
He listed a couple objectives and strategies from the Development Areas chapter of the
Comprehensive Plan, which focus on how the county uses its development area land efficiently.
He said Objective 4 states that the county wants to use development area efficiently to prevent
premature expansion of dwelling areas. He said one strategy the county undertakes to implement
this objective includes monitoring building activity (including building activity reports put out by the
Geographic Data Services division every quarter, Certificates of Occupancy, building permit
issuance, and development dashboard and tracking system the county has been trying to
implement and further build out) to understand how development happens in the county and the
implications of it.

Mr. Knuppel said the other strategy the county uses is to update the capacity analysis every two
years to ensure the county has adequate residential land to meet new housing needs. He said he
would discuss the methodology of this, explaining that the report is to provide better context to
the capacity analysis and what has been happening, as well as to provide the analysis of what is
left and the implications of it.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 2
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



Mr. Knuppel said the staff tried to expand the report that year, noting that two years prior, it was
simply a table containing a few buildout scenarios and what the theoretical buildout of each
development area would look like. He said staff wanted to make sure they provided more context
in the report that year, understanding some of the recent movement around the Regional Housing
Needs Assessment, which was the housing study that Ms. Pethia was taking on. He said there
was good data in this report and presented some questions for staff as they look at building trends,
what types of housing is being built, and where.

Mr. Knuppel said staff looked at a 10-year analysis based on Certificate of Occupancy information,
unit type, mix, and location. He said staff added some information as to what is in the pipeline,
and the development dashboard that was rolled out earlier that year ensures they have a better
handle of what is currently in the pipeline and what the nearly 9,000 units that were approved in
the county would look like. He said it includes the residential capacity analysis, which looks at the
county’s developable land area within the development areas, greenfield and potential infill sites,
and different buildout scenarios under the zoning ordinance and Comprehensive Plan.

Mr. Knuppel said the report ends with profiles of each development area to understand what has
been happening (e.g. in Neighborhood I or Il) over the past 10 years, what is currently approved
in the pipeline, what theoretical buildout would look like, and where the remaining land in the area
would be.

Mr. Knuppel said there would be a new presenter. He said Mr. Joseph Snitzer was a third-year
Mathematics and Statistics undergraduate student at UVA and was the county’s intern that
summer, bringing with him a fantastic skillset for data analysis, visualization, and GIS. He said
Mr. Snitzer played an instrumental role in helping staff have the capacity to undertake a model,
as well as helping staff understand current trends and build the new model.

Mr. Snitzer reviewed recent trends from the Growth Management Report. He presented a map
showing Certificates of Occupancy issued throughout the county, with a hot spots map applied to
it to show areas of high concentration over the past 10 years. He indicated to the highest
concentration being in areas such as Pantops, Crozet, and Neighborhoods Il and V. He said that
more specific trends are analyzed in the development area profiles in the report.

In order to demonstrate current activity and the general trends between the development areas
and rural areas, Mr. Snitzer presented a map that showed single-family detached building permit
activity from 2018. He said up until the Great Recession, it was a roughly 50-50 balance in terms
of permit activity between the two areas, but after the recession, the development area witnessed
a much more severe decrease in activity. He said that ever since 2009, the development areas
have seen greater degrees of activity relative to the rural areas.

Mr. Snitzer addressed the range of different dwelling units throughout the county, presenting a
chart of the types of dwelling units that were built, by corridor, from 2009 to 2018. He said the
majority of the dwelling unit type that has been built during this time period was single-family
detached, with sporadic instances of multi-family housing units appearing. He said the second
most frequent type throughout this period was the single-family attached/townhouse dwelling unit
type. He said the only instances in which single-family detached housing reached less than 50%
of the dwelling unit types that were built in a given corridor were instances in which there was a
large increase in multi-family units being built.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 3
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



Mr. Snitzer said that in terms of general trends, the single-family detached type being the
predominant unit type was a fairly consistent aspect of all the corridors. He said the multi-family
types were very difficult to project based on the time it takes to construct them, the scale to which
units are added, and the infrequency with which they are actually developed in the county.

Mr. Snitzer explained that one key consideration in revamping the capacity analysis model (the
main aspect of the Growth Management Report) was to improve time effectiveness both in terms
of making the analysis quicker to do and allowing it to happen more frequently. He said another
consideration was to reduce human error by automating the process and ensuring that there is
as little human interaction with the data itself from start to finish. He said a third consideration was
ways to bring in data the county already has in order to improve the capacity analysis and make
it more rigorous. He said specific methodological changes were made (e.g. revising the infill and
redevelopment filter).

Mr. Snitzer presented the model used in the capacity analysis methodology, noting there were
two main steps. He said the first step was geospatial, done in RGIS. He said the second step was
to use the R programming language. He said the first component filters out land that is believed
to potentially take on new growth in the future, and the second part is assigning how many units
are expected on those filtered-out lands. He said the model takes in many data sets that the
county already had and has a user interface that allows for assumptions to be changed, allowing
for different iterations to be made based on different parameters inputted by the user.

Mr. Snitzer presented the result of the analysis. He presented a map of the projection based on
the Comprehensive Plan buildout scenario, noting that it only showed residential units. He
explained the color scheme, noting that yellow referred to single-family residential units identified
by the capacity analysis methodology, pink referred to multi-family attached/townhouse
development, and blue representing already-approved developments.

Mr. Snitzer said there were three different buildout scenarios the model handles: Current Zoning
- Gross Density, Current Zoning - Net Density (with the difference having to do with the
environmental constraints being considered), and the Comprehensive Plan’s future land use
buildout scenario. He said the summary tables provided show the buildout units calculation,
explaining that it is calculated by the current units in addition to the approved pipeline units, as
well as the area potential from the capacity analysis. He added that there is a low and high
estimate for each of the values.

Mr. Snitzer said in terms of how this is compared to expected population growth estimate, the
Weldon Cooper Center’s 2040 projections are used in order to predict the expected number of
dwelling units needed. He said the way to calculate that is by looking at population growth and
the difference between what is expected in 2040 and current population, divided by the average
people per unit in order to arrive at the number of units expected for the net population growth.
He said this value was found in the Projected Additional Units Needed column on the table.

Mr. Snitzer said the last two columns in the table show the difference between the estimated
additional units based on the buildout analysis minus the expected additional units needed to
show whether there are enough potential developments to take on the additional population rise.

Mr. Knuppel said that the new model was a big step forward for staff in terms of reducing human
error in the process. He noted there are many spreadsheets and tabs and that two years prior,
there was a great deal of hand-sorted information. He said he would talk about the trends involved

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 4
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



with the model, adding that the new model does a much better job of using the data currently
available. He said staff looked at what other localities were doing, with a focus on the Oregon
Metropolitan and Portland area which has a famous growth management policy. He said
comparisons were made to this and other localities to ensure that the model has a solid method
and background.

Mr. Knuppel emphasized how helpful Mr. Snitzer was, noting he was back in school and that they
hoped he would return to help with other GIS work tied into the Rio-29 form-based code and some
viewshed analysis.

Mr. Knuppel said the goal was to consider the implications on the full development area. He said
staff was looking at the potential units that could be built under the current zoning and
Comprehensive Plan, the gross density scenario that is currently in the zoning ordinance, and
undevelopable environmentally constrained features from the density calculations and from the
Comprehensive Plan. He noted that in the methodology, areas under easement were removed.
He said the ultimate calculation was what is currently built, what is in the pipeline, and what could
potentially happen to vacant greenfield and infill sites.

Mr. Knuppel said staff looked at some filters to determine if a parcel that already has a house on
it could support a couple more units. He noted this would not happen with every house because
not every piece of property could support it, but that staff considered the ones where infill could
reasonably happen.

Mr. Knuppel said staff used a variety of sources, noting that they do not perform population
projections in-house, but that these are obtained from the Weldon Cooper Center, adding that
they do a good job (usually better than the Census Bureau) of predicting what could happen in
Albemarle County. He said staff takes a 20-year look at the data, which was consistent with what
other localities do, and that they plan on a 20-year Comprehensive Planning horizon and therefore
use the 2040 projections from the Weldon Cooper Center.

Mr. Knuppel said estimates are used internally about how many people the dwelling units could
theoretically report because the density calculation is created in terms of housing units per acre,
not people per acre. He acknowledged that it wasn’t a perfect translation, but that once staff
obtains the 2020 census, they would have the first complete count and will have a better idea of
the multipliers and assumptions that are inputted into the model.

Mr. Keller expressed that the commissioners likely had questions as well as delight in seeing the
data, as it was something they wanted for a long time. He said they were pleased with the work
Mr. Knuppel and staff did on the dashboard. He asked if Mr. Knuppel wanted the commissioners
to ask questions slide by slide that were related to those areas, or if he would like to go all the
way through it first and then take questions before the public hearing.

Mr. Knuppel replied that they could go all the way through the presentation, as there was a lot of
material in the report and that he wanted to make sure there was understanding of the
assumptions that he would review.

Mr. Knuppel noted the caveats with the data, noting that the model was more automated that
year. He said they performed an “eyeball” test, reviewing every parcel that came back as
redevelopable and removed the ones that obviously should not be (e.g. cemeteries), as well as
where GIS shows a sliver of a parcel. He said this test should ensure that everything in the report

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 5
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



is consistent with what could actually happen.

Mr. Knuppel noted that with all this said, the model does likely overestimate capacity because it
looks at a larger pool of redevelopment candidate parcels, which include parcels that have under
a $25,000 improvement value (meaning there isn’t a substantially improved structure on the
parcel), and areas that have no improvement value. He said staff made a change, recalling that
in the past, they removed an entire acre and that a parcel had to be over two acres. He said that
they are seeing more and more that with smaller sites in the development areas and this is not
feasible — that they will tear the house down or add in the incremental difference. He said removing
one acre didn’'t seem to make sense with what was actually happening on the ground.

Mr. Knuppel said this also added more uncertainty for areas that had a mix of zoning designations
and Comprehensive Plan designations. He said this, in and of itself, will cause an increase over
the 2017 results.

Mr. Knuppel reminded the commission that they are using tax information more heavily this time
and that this could result in a few more parcels. He said staff arrived at a point where the data
was mostly consistent with past results, explaining that they went back through the spreadsheets
and checked to see what made sense to ensure they were on the right track. He said the model
is different than what was used two years before, and year-to-year comparability was difficult. He
said the hope was because they have the new model, they could use it as a better way, moving
forward.

Mr. Knuppel said parameters included the improvement value of the site, and overall land value
per acre for commercial sites. He said with the Rio29 Small Area Plan and the most recent
Pantops Master Plan, these could be places where they could start to see redevelopment in the
future and that staff was planning for this. He noted that many of those sites weren’t included in
the analysis and didn’t make it through the filter, so staff did not feel it was appropriate to add
them due to maintaining consistency. He said staff was planning ahead, however, for what else
could come.

Mr. Knuppel noted that the pipeline projects don’t always build out to full potential. He said, for
example, Old Trail Village was approved for 2,200 dwelling units for the whole project and since
then, they have lowered their minimum requirement to 1,000 and that it has been heard that they
are not expecting to build out to a full 2,200. He said that staff doesn’t necessarily know what it
will look like until every piece of land in the rezoning has been site planned and subdivided. He
said that as staff was able, they made caveats were there were changes to the pipeline. He
mentioned Cascadia and Avinity, noting they have two parcels left but it was basically done, but
that there was uncertainty as far as the 8,443 units that were in the pipeline on July 1 about when
they will develop and to what extent.

Mr. Knuppel said that in past analyses, staff has removed properties owned by UVA Foundation.
He noted that properties owned by the University proper are exempted because of their Tax
Exempt status. He said the Foundation, for instance, was an institutional landowner and that the
county also owns substantial amounts of institutional land that would not be picked up otherwise
and was not planned for a program yet. He said the institutional properties would not have been
counted, but the Foundation does own a significant amount of land that is designated for future
residential uses in the Comprehensive Plan, and so one of the scenarios towards the end of the
report did take this out and consider it because it was not known what the plan was and that other
institutional priorities could shape how the land is used.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 6
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



Mr. Knuppel said that the biggest caveat was that development that is market driven depends on
property owner willingness. He said even though the county may have a lot of land that is
theoretically available, it doesn’t mean that it will be owner developed or the improvements will be
in place for that property to develop. He said this was always important caveat in that they may
have the land, but the challenges to seeing it meet the county’s expected need overtime should
be considered.

Mr. Knuppel reiterated that the model was better than what staff had before. He said in terms of
findings, some of the scenarios that emerged from the model were under Gross Density Zoning,
Net Density Zoning, and Comprehensive Plan. He said in looking at development area profiles,
there were some conflicts evident between the minimum that might be doable under a Gross
Density Zoning calculation versus under the Comprehensive Plan. He explained that this was
partly due to the Comprehensive Plan calling out greenway corridors and parks and green
systems to be preserved.

Mr. Knuppel said the conflicts were a consideration when drawing land use maps in the Master
Plans or when possibly updating the zoning ordinance in the future. He said this was relevant in
terms of the ability for capacity, as well as creating predictability in the process with the community
in the Master Planning efforts. He said, for instance, in the Pantops Master Plan, it is zoned one
way but is shown as another, and consideration had to be made for how to balance this and
ensure the county has a plan that is ultimately workable and achievable. He acknowledged that
this could frustrate the implementation of the Comprehensive Plan and when a property develops
by-right.

Mr. Knuppel said the big question of the report was the expected need with the caveats
mentioned. He said with a hypothetical buildout of the county’s development and what is in the
pipeline, everything in the pipeline builds out and in theory, there will be enough room to
accommodate the growing population in 2040, per the Weldon Cooper Center.

Mr. Knuppel again noted that some of the units don’t always build out, that institutional landowners
sometimes have other priorities, and that there was potential overestimation in the model,
resulting in predictions that were less clear. He said this was not a non-answer, but that the factors
should be considered. He reiterated that many factors have changed with the new model and that
the commission needed to be aware of this as they think about what it looks like to develop on
the low end of the Comprehensive Plan, in a higher density of range, and so on.

Mr. Knuppel said this was the first time that staff mapped and visualized the data with the new
model and that this was done in a much more effective way. He said the information would
hopefully be effective when integrating into Master Planning and other land use and zoning efforts
moving forward.

Mr. Keller opened the public hearing.

Mr. Morgan Butler (Southern Environmental Law Center) addressed the commission. He thanked
staff for their thorough analysis and well-written report. He said one of the key questions the report
explores is to whether the existing growth areas have enough capacity to accommodate the
county’s projected growth over the next 20 years.

Mr. Butler said in looking at the data and, specifically, the key summary table on the slide (also at

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 7
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



the bottom of page 13 of the report), the first column of the table shows the three different growth
scenarios evaluated. He said if his understanding was correct, the first two scenarios (Zoning
Gross and Zoning Net) both assume that all buildout of vacant and underused growth area parcels
will go forward, by right, under the current zoning of those parcels and that no further rezonings
will occur. He said the difference between those two scenarios is that the first, Zoning Gross,
calculates by-right buildout based on a growth density calculation, which is how the zoning
ordinance currently regulates density today.

Mr. Butler said the second scenario, Zoning Net, calculates by-right buildout based on a net
density calculation, which is more restrictive than the current zoning allows. He said, as such, that
the Zoning Net scenario not only assumes an entirely by-right buildout, but that the by-right
buildout occurs pursuant to a net density allowance that is more restrictive than what the current
zoning ordinance allows. He said the Zoning Net scenario strikes the SELC as an overly-
restrictive scenario for a capacity analysis.

Mr. Butler said that, still looking at the left-most column of the table, the third scenario analyzed
(Comprehensive Plan) uses density ranges from the Comprehensive Plan’s land use
designations. He said this scenario assumes all vacant and underused growth area parcels are
rezoned and developed within the range of residential densities called for in the Comprehensive
Plan. He said as SELC sees it, the most reasonable capacity scenario falls somewhere between
the Zoning Gross and the Comprehensive Plan scenarios. He said a share of development will
occur by-right, but some parcels (hopefully a healthy majority) will be rezoned and developed in
line with the Comprehensive Plan.

Mr. Butler said that focusing on those two scenarios, and looking at the last two sets of columns
in the table, it was clear that the current growth areas have more than enough capacity to handle
all of the county’s projected growth over the next 20 years, even at the low end of the estimated
capacity ranges and even adjusting the final numbers downward to account for staff's caveats
about the pipeline uncertainty and the UVA Foundation land. He said this is actually what has
been done in the last two columns.

Mr. Butler said that what this demonstrates to SELC is that the county needs to be focusing on
how they can fund and provide better services and infrastructure within the existing growth areas
as opposed to expanding the area over which those things must be provided. He said it
demonstrates that a focus must be kept on how to ensure that new development facilitates transit
service and other ways of getting around to help reduce traffic impacts. He said it demonstrates
that a focus must be kept on how to provide truly affordable housing in the growth areas where
there is access to necessary services and public transportation.

Mr. Butler said that, in short, the county needs to keep its efforts and resources focused on
establishing the growth areas it has promised rather than expanding its promises.

Mr. Neil Williamson (Free Enterprise Forum) said he appreciated many of Mr. Butler's comments
and couldn’t agree more that the county should keep the promises it made back to the “land use
lurk” and other promises. He said any of those promises would be good in funding the
infrastructure in the development area.

Mr. Williamson continued that, with this being said, he and Mr. Butler chose to read from different
parts of page 13 of the report. He said that when he read the top of page 13, he read the line that
says, “Removing 1,000 units from the current pipeline, accounting for Old Trail and Stonefield

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 8
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



alone, the UVA Foundation’s residentially-designated holdings from the potential capacity pool
reveals the low ends of density ranges may not be sufficient to accommodate new residential
growth.”

Mr. Williamson said earlier that day, he shared with the commission a blog post that talked about
Harry Truman, who famously looked for a one-handed economist because he wanted someone
who didn’t say, “on the other hand.” He said the report has a number of “the other hands.”

Mr. Williamson commended staff, noting that it was a very objective report, but the problem was
that the Zoning Text Amendments that Mr. Butler referred to are approved by a subjective group
called the Board of Supervisors and are recommended by the Planning Commission. He said as
of late, the Planning Commission has been approving projects that have density in the hard edge
that have been part of the design of New Urbanism for 20 years. He said that now, what they
were hearing was the tapered edge and that it wasn’t that the growth area was growing, but that
it was actually shrinking because in the adjacent neighborhoods that are adjacent to the single-
family homes that were built 4 years before, those residents state objections against having
townhomes build next to them.

Mr. Williamson said there was no way to put into GIS the subjectivity of “not in my backyard.” He
said that Mr. Butler's comments about funding infrastructure were critically important, and that the
concept of rezonings at present time continue to be challenging. He said he didn’t believe the
county would see a multitude of rezonings, but that they would see a balance of some rezonings
and some properties going by-right.

Mr. Williamson said the words in the report about not having capacity were concerning words. He
said later in the report, it talks about environmental impacts of residents living outside the area
and commuting into work. He commended staff for the great first step and the information about
ArcGIS, expressing that they were headed in the right direction. He also commended the Planning
Commission for nudging staff in that direction.

Mr. Sean Tubbs (Piedmont Environmental Council) said that PEC’s reading of the report
concluded that the county has enough capacity to accommodate additional residential demand in
the areas for the foreseeable future. He said that what the county really needed was a continued
financial and moral commitment to fulfill the Comprehensive Plan and provide the services and
amenities it will take to make the urban neighborhoods a desirable place to live. He said he could
see much positive movement from the county on that.

Mr. Tubbs said he would focus mostly on transportation, which PEC takes to include new bike-
ped infrastructure as well as the enhanced transit system that was under development. He said
those amenities serve the county’s climate goals, economic development goals, and
Comprehensive Plan goals. He said as recently heard in the 999 Rio Road discussion, there were
concerns with traffic and with the county’s roads not being up to capacity. He said there was a
sense that the infrastructure hasn’t been provided, and that perhaps this was true up until 2013-
2014, when the John Warner Parkway came online, which gave the county a multi-modal trail
which was a new amenity that did not exist prior to many of the homes being built in that area.

Mr. Tubbs said the parkway was what makes the urban residential density in the Comprehensive
Plan that was called for at both 999 Rio Road, as well as the Wetzel Property, possible. He said
up north, with the Hollymead neighborhood and the density that is both in the pipeline and under
construction, there was the Berkmar Drive extension which, with its multi-modal trail, also makes

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 9
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



the density possible.

Mr. Tubbs expressed that he didn’t believe the projects were flukes or “one-offs.” He said
Albemarle County has in place a resourceful transportation planner and an accomplished
assistant who have been able to capitalize on the momentum of the can-do spirit of the Route 29
Solutions project. He said there were a tremendous amount of possibilities, and that he had hope
and confidence that everyone could work together to continue to fulfill the Comprehensive Plan.

Mr. Tubbs said that as he read through the report, it was great to look at the neighborhoods, and
that he was aware of the projects underway in Neighborhood V, such as the potential of the
pedestrian connection to Azalea Park in the city. He said all over the county, there were projects
underway and in the planning process, with a spirt that improvements were happening. He said
the projects demonstrate that the county has a planning staff that has come a long way in being
able to prepare and keep up with growth. He said staff was capable of conducting its Master Plans
in house, which wasn’t the case in the past and was exciting.

Mr. Tubbs mentioned the Regional Transit Partnership, noting there were many possibilities to
address the concerns they have been calling for (for up to 40 years in the Comprehensive Plan).
He expressed hope that this could be done, but noted he had a concern that if the county expands
the growth area prematurely, this would all come crashing to a halt without the incentive to build
much of the density they will see, for instance, in the Rio29 Small Area Plan.

Mr. Keller closed the public hearing and brought the meeting back to discussion.

Ms. More acknowledged that the subject likely needed to be approached by topic, or
commissioner to commissioner. She said, however, that she wanted to take the opportunity to
discuss OId Trail and the 1,000-unit number that was presented by staff and Mr. Williamson. She
asked about page 29 of the report and the chart for Old Trail and for confirmation that the units
remaining were 1,816. She clarified that the 1,000 number was pulled back to the minimum
number. She said the applicant was approved for 2,200 units. She asked if the 1,816 number was
not counting the 196 apartments that were being built.

Mr. Knuppel replied that Ms. More was correct. He explained that the numbers account for the
units that have Certificates of Occupancy as of July 1, 2019.

Ms. More asked, at the time the data was collected for OId Trail, if there were 384 units.
Mr. Knuppel replied this was correct and that this was staff’s best estimate.

Ms. More responded that this number was low, and respectfully so. She said that, to this point,
almost 200 apartments were currently being built and that they weren’t being counted because
they were in the pipeline and had not received their COs yet.

Ms. More offered history on Old Trail, noting that there was a part of Crozet that would not forget
it, but that sometimes the commissioners do. She prefaced that she was not a part of it, but there
was a time where David Wyatt was the supervisor who represented White Hall, and when Old
Trail was to be rezoned (and the rezoning was presented to the community), Mr. Wyatt voted to
double the size of what Old Trail is today, at maximum full buildout.

Ms. More said that when the community is told that Old Trail may come in low, this was actually

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 10
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



the number that the community, at that time, participated in and believed would be the full buildout.
She said when staff approaches the community, they should remember that there was a major
trust issue with what happened there and that there was another series of votes prior to 2008 that
increased what Crozet's maximum buildout would be. She again expressed that staff's numbers
were low and that it was known there would be some large numbers to add on to it, and that the
1,000 was pulled back and was more in keeping with what the community originally thought would
be approved prior to 2008.

Mr. Knuppel said Ms. More’s point was well taken and that staff was trying to ensure that in their
first step bringing the information out to the public, the information is brought to the Planning
Commission first. He said the point would be to figure out how to best bring the information to the
CACs and other groups. Mr. Knuppel said that the buildout of OIld Trail did not include the
residences and The Lodge at Old Trail, noting that those do not count towards the density.

Ms. More asked if Creekside was being counted.
Mr. Knuppel replied that the numbers did not include Creekside.
Ms. More noted that most of Creekside was by-right.

Mr. Knuppel replied she was correct and that the numbers only look at what was captured under
the original rezoning. He noted that the pipeline projects on the individual dwelling area profiles
are marked down where staff was able. He said with Old Trail as an exception (where there were
unknowns as to where the buildouts would happen), where there was a rezoning that did not
come in under an approved maximum, staff tried to knock it down where they could. He said the
numbers reflected the full theoretical 2,200 units.

Ms. More acknowledged that it was a challenge for both staff and for herself as a commissioner
to track growth at Old Trail because it was a massive rezoning that comes through in bits and
pieces, and therefore has the ability to change form (such as with the unexpected apartments,
which were not a component that the community originally predicted, but was needed).

Mr. Keller asked Mr. Knuppel to let the commission know what he would hope to receive from the
commission in terms of commentary. He asked him if he wanted to organize how the
commissioners should respond to him.

Ms. Falkenstein replied that staff did not necessarily expect any outcomes but wanted to hear the
commission’s feedback. She said if the commission observed any red flags or had concerns with
the language of the messaging, it would be helpful information. She said staff planned to bring it
out to the individual communities, most likely through the CACs. She said if the commission had
any thoughts or advice on how to do that, staff would be open to it.

Mr. Keller asked if the information had been presented to the Board of Supervisors.
Ms. Falkenstein replied no.

Mr. Keller asked staff to consider holding a joint Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors
meeting about the topic.

Ms. Riley said she had a procedural recommendation. She said perhaps initially, the commission

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 11
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



could discuss the methodology as well as the structure of the report.

Ms. Riley expressed that it seemed as though the cutoff for the projects that were included in the
pipeline was July 1, 2019. She asked if this was correct.

Mr. Knuppel replied yes.
Ms. Riley asked how often staff expected the report to be produced in the future.

Mr. Knuppel replied that the report took a significant amount of time to produce, mostly due to
staff's hope to include the residential capacity analysis with it. He said the Comprehensive Plan
calls for this analysis every two years, and that doing it any sooner than that two years would
require some consideration with the work and staff capacity at that time. He said the work was
planned for earlier in the year to do the project that summer. He said staff’'s hope was that in
improving the process and model, they could start to run the report more often, or potentially with
a Master Plan, they could run it with new assumptions. He expressed that there was not a firm
date of when the report would be done again, outside of the two-year update.

Ms. Riley expressed her appreciation for the work that went into the reporting as well as the quality
of the report. She said that in terms of the methodology, she had questions about the assumption
around the multiplier. She said she understood that they were not generating unknown population
numbers, but that they were taking it from Weldon Cooper. She noted that the multiplier of how
many people per unit has major implications. She asked for more explanation about this,
acknowledging that it was based on the census and that she assumed it was based on national
averages in terms of the multiplier by unit type. She said she wondered if they might have a
deviation from the average, as the cost of housing goes up and more people are becoming packed
into smaller units, such as townhomes.

Ms. Riley said this was a question that came to mind as she was considering the numbers the
county ultimately may need. She said if they are putting more people in homes, it might be less,
but that it has implications in terms of affordable housing strategies.

Mr. Knuppel replied that the multipliers staff used in the calculations came from the same ones
that were used in 2017 and were drafted from the American Community Survey from a five-year
sample. He noted that he was not a part of creating the multipliers, but that staff looked at the
numbers county-wide (not national averages) and that he believed it was based on using the
census tracks (which most closely approximate the development areas) and on information about
unit types and population to come up with the estimates.

Mr. Knuppel said staff would have a better opportunity with the 2020 census (with defined
population centers and census-designated places) to have a complete count in 2020. He
explained that census-designated places are a Census Bureau geography that has a named
community with a center. He said, for example, the county had Crozet, Hollymead, Piney
Mountain, Pantops, and were requesting to add Rio-29 as a CDP for 2019. He said for those
specific areas, staff may have better luck at approximating who actually lives in the neighborhoods
and areas and have the complete count.

Mr. Knuppel said that depending on the housing mix and type, staff uses a 2.54 multiplier overall
for the long-run, as they do not know the exact mix of housing that is built over time. He said staff
typically expects this in the population estimates. He said they did provide that they use a lower

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 12
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



multiplier for more dense, multi-family developments than they would for a single-family home,
which they would expect to have a larger population size. He said staff was considering the
changing household sizes, moving forward.

Mr. Keller recommended to continue the discussion on methodology and hear from each
commissioner.

Ms. Firehock said she didn’t have a comment on methodology but expressed that all models are
wrong, with some being less wrong than others. She said she hoped that staff's model was “less
wrong.”

Ms. More said she wanted to understand the idea behind not removing the 1-acre home site, as
Mr. Knuppel had explained. She said the report explained that this would have been previously
removed and that the trend was not to do this because it was more likely that the house would be
torn down so that the full site could be used. She said she understood this, but that she wanted
to know how this trend could be reconciled with the fact that the county has older, established
neighborhoods in not only Crozet, but in other areas of the county. She said infill is discussed and
there is language in the Master Plans about keeping the size, scale, and character of the
neighborhoods. She asked how this could be reconciled with the trend, which involves tearing
down historic homes.

Ms. More said with Crozet’'s character and small-town feel, some of that is pulled from those
neighborhoods that are prone to have this happen. She said, for example, that rather than simply
putting another house on a parcel in an R-2 development, a historic home could be torn down so
that 6 units could be put in because a developer takes the parcel and neighboring ones.

Ms. More said she was unsure what the answer could be from staff, and that she thought the
methodology was logical, but that it worried her in terms of the sensitive areas that make who the
county is. She asked how staff reconciles this reality with some of the goals the county has in
keeping the neighborhoods that are prone to infill to still possess some character and unique
quality.

Mr. Knuppel replied that Ms. More’s question was an interesting one. He noted that the area
profiles were broken down into tables as far as vacant spaces on the sites versus infill parcels.
He said there was a way to determine what the impacts would be from infilling properties. He said
for the infill scenarios, staff did remove one unit for the houses already there and assumed that
building would occur behind the house or on a subdivided lot. He said that building a new house
on the lot does happen sometimes, and that there isn’'t always a great way to estimate this, but
that their numbers were more in line with what was actually happening. He acknowledged the
challenges present for how to reconcile an ordinance in the Comprehensive Plan that focuses on
density ranges rather than character or scale.

Mr. Knuppel said there were more appropriate ways that staff could explore to measure growth
or how to accommodate the growing population with development rights than tearing down a
house, especially ones with historic or special value to the county. He said perhaps adaptive
reuse could be more appropriate to help preserve the houses. He said he heard Ms. More’s
concern and that staff took into consideration how much was coming from infill and where it will
have an impact on communities, especially with the more urbanized, built-out neighborhoods and
from where growth would come.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 13
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



Mr. Dotson asked how staff performed quality assurance or quality control on the report, noting
Ms. Falkenstein’s mention of the report being a draft. He asked how staff went about
troubleshooting the model and ensuring that it was strong.

Mr. Knuppel replied that staff built, broke, and rebuilt the model several times to make it work. He
said that they QA’ed or QC’ed what the accounted parcels were, for example, noting that
redevelopment and infill scenarios were tricky as far as how to figure out and calibrate them to
match past results. He said it more closely matched to pick up half the development area as infill.
He said staff compared to past scenarios what was done and ensured that the numbers were
keeping more in line as far as what seemed redevelopable and what did not. He said this also
involved changing out filters to arrive at how much density were needed on an infill site for it to
make sense.

Mr. Dotson said he asked his question, in part, because the blog that Mr. Williamson mentioned
cites a few things which have his math disagreeing with the math in the report. He asked if staff
had tested the model and if they were confident that their numbers were correct. He suggested
that perhaps a conversation between Mr. Knuppel and Mr. Williamson would resolve the
difference.

Mr. Knuppel replied that he had seen Mr. Williamson’s blog post that morning. He said the report
was not a perfect document and that one of the numbers in it was a typo. He added that the other
information about the pipeline was the best that staff had available as far as what was in the
development tracking system, noting that projects do change as they go from the initial site plan
to the final site plan and through revisions. He said that, for example, when pipeline projects come
in, he enters the plan into the system, and that typos do sometimes happen, usually to a smaller
magnitude of 1-2 units. He said he was fairly confident about the data in the report, caveating
again that it was not perfect, and also noting the caveats in the graphs that indicated that the data
was entered by hand.

Ms. Spain offered her appreciation for the work done on the report, adding that numbering the
pages was a big help. She asked for explanation about a table, expressing her confusion about
the model components that include retail, service, and commercial. She referred to page 46. She
asked if she was correct in understanding that those components were used to calculate the value
of the land, as well as for the purpose of the table.

Mr. Knuppel replied that for Table 1, staff explored the potential of using it in the future as a way
to predict commercial buildout. He said they ended up not including this information in the report,
as they did not have time to run the model, for example, for what was the theoretical square
footage of office use that could be on the site. He said in conjunction with the Economic
Development office that summer, they set up the framework for the model to be able to do this in
the future. He said the table included example numbers they looked at based on a sample of
developments in Pantops, for example. He said they did not end up using the different use types
in the report.

Mr. Knuppel explained that in the future, staff would like to be able to predict what the commercial
buildout of the county would look like to accommodate retail, services, office users, etc. He said
the mixes for residential were the same as the ones staff used two years before and that this was
consistent with what was done. He said they did not vet the other mixes, or low and high ranges,
for gross floor area per acre. He said they did look at this as a way that other localities (such as
the Oregon Metro) predict their commercial counts.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 14
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



Ms. Spain asked for the difference between the land use being identified in the first table, versus
zoning in the second table.

Mr. Knuppel replied that the land use was the Comprehensive Plan land use, and that staff
assumed that they wanted a mix of uses in the development areas and what this would potentially
be on a site. He explained that the second table looked at a similar situation but what the output
would look like. He said this was the current zoning and the potential acreage of the parcel and,
using the multipliers, how many units could be supported in it.

Mr. Bivins thanked Mr. Knuppel for the format, explaining that it made the report much easier to
read and to stay with his presentation. He expressed that he often gets annoyed at reports that
do not have page numbers. He said he was not annoyed as he read the document. He explained
that part of what Mr. Knuppel was doing was telling a story, and he wants to keep people with
them as he tells the story. He suggested that Mr. Knuppel consider more consistent labeling. He
said colors were assigned to housing types on page 7, and on the first screen in the presentation,
the colors were changed as well as the order. He explained that assigning the colors sets the
parameters of how one reads the report, and then it becomes confusing because the colors and
orders changed.

Mr. Keller added that there was a caption that said, “Rural on Development,” and then one that
said, “Development on Rural.”

Mr. Bivins said that the moment someone becomes suspicious or confused, they have been lost
in the storytelling. He said he had another suggestion, explaining that it was offensive that Pantops
had its own Neighborhood IlI, but Pantops was bracketed or put into parentheses. He said that
either all the neighborhoods are treated the same, because numbering the neighborhoods but
then not naming them all suggests that some are not worthy of being named. He said that
neighborhoods (Jack Jouett in particular) will wonder why Pantops got called out as a specific
neighborhood and everyone else is numbered 1-7. He said either they are named, or not named,
and they are only named when going to Crozet, Hollymead, Piney Mountain, and the Village of
Rivanna.

Mr. Bivins referred to the first paragraph on page 6 of the report that stated, “...where additional
demand and competition for housing driven by University of Virginia students, retirees, and
second home buyers also exerts upward pressure on sales prices and rents.” He said this was
an interesting hypothesis, as the university sent what is flat enroliment expectations to staff, and
that he could say from his experience at UVA that they are already doing a reduction in certain
staff. He said UVA was not growing their staff as hoped and that there would be flat enrollment,
so the demand for that types of housing will probably be standard.

Mr. Keller interjected and suggested that since the topic was about demographics, they should
talk about why. He said the reason was because the GenX population that was up, much like the
Boomers, was experiencing lower trends of birth rates and therefore, all the colleges around the
country were assessing this.

Mr. Bivins agreed. He said in addition to this, how people gather households was also being
researched. He expressed that he is often annoyed with houses being referred to as “single-
family” as opposed to “households” because “family” has a different connotation in 2019 than it
did in the 1950s. He said that keeping in mind the idea of what retirees and the over-55 community

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 15
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



looks like, the data in the report suggests that the county will be out of luck because they wouldn’t
be coming to Albemarle, but to Greene County where they are building over-55 communities. He
noted this was the case if this demographic was going to be driving the demand for housing type.

Mr. Bivins considered second home buyers, asking what this demographic looked like. He asked
staff, as they build out the report, to research what second homeowners buy from the tax records
because those records either go to an LLC with an address not in Charlottesville, or to an LLC in
itself, or they go to some place other than 22901 or 22903. He said this was a hypothesis where
it could be determined what the second homeowner’s demographic looked like. He added that if
there is ever data obtained on Airbnb, staff can also look at some of the second homeowner
situations, adding that he believed that staff was on the right path with looking at this demographic.

Mr. Bivins continued that the housing that will be driven in the county will not be done so by the
students, but by retirees/over-55 and the second homeowners. He suggested that because of
this, the 2.54 multiplier is probably something that staff will want to adjust, because looking at the
data and who is sitting in houses, 2.54 was likely not accurate because they were considering a
different kind of household. He said that staff gets to tell the story, but they should do so in a way
in which he would not argue with their assumptions because they are theirs.

Mr. Bivins said if staff's statement about the three demographics having an impact on sales and
rents was true, the market will respond to that. He said in looking at the bubbles and hot points,
he could not see anyone responding to those housing types. He asked how this would be
reconciled.

Recalling Ms. Riley’s earlier question, Mr. Bivins suggested that staff own the results from the
2020 Census. He said the report was dealing with old data, and that some things in Weldon
Cooper’s population predictions model should be discussed. He said the 2020 Census would
actually be staff's baseline for the next model, and as they drive a set of equations or approaches,
staff will be in a perfect situation to test them off of as close to actual data as they will have in the
next two years, which would be when staff will be running the report again. He said this would
enable staff to own their methodology and assumptions and be able to explain the assumptions
and carry them through the narrative. He explained that this would prevent situations in which the
commission would question the data.

Ms. Spain said she was sympathetic with Mr. Bivins’ concerns about language that indicates
families rather than households. She explained, however, that Mr. Knuppel was trying to follow
census definitions of families and households. She said this standardization was needed to
compare with other reports over time.

Mr. Bivins urged staff not to disregard the results from their last methodology. He said this was a
model that was thought to be good enough at the time, and so the results from that become a
baseline or benchmark for staff to see how their model compares. He suggested pushing the new
model over the same data period to see how it performs in order to validate it. He also suggested
looking at the variances and how the model could be improved upon.

Mr. Keller asked staff if they have worked with Steve Allshouse in setting the up the process and
in considering the data sets, he was working with during the time when the Fiscal Impact
Committee was reviewing impact costs.

Mr. Knuppel replied no, and that staff had mostly kept the same general methodology they have

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 16
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



used internally in terms of the data sets.

Mr. Keller encouraged Mr. Knuppel to at least collaborate with Mr. Allshouse during the next
iteration of the report to begin building towards what will happen in two years. He said the one
and two years will be important, as they will begin to have the new census information, noting that
there would likely be surprises in what they learn from that.

Mr. Keller continued that it seemed to him to be components of impact that were very much part
of growth management. He said that since staff is delving into the tax arena, he had a feeling that
there were things that could be extrapolated from this. He said that county-wide, the relationship
between the residential taxes being paid and its relationship to the commercial and industrial
taxes being paid could, in effect, become the carrying capacity of residential units. He said this
was a major figure that people were concerned with that resulted from Mr. Allshouse’s work, which
gave the carrying capacity of a household, which was a different formula than having the multiplier
of 2.43 because it was closer to 4.

Mr. Keller said that the point was that, given the taxes coming in in all other categories annually,
the residential units the county has must make up the difference, which is why the county raises
real estate taxes because it is such a significant portion of the county’s annual income. He noted
that Economic Development staff were present and asked if the county was bringing in the
commercial and industrial in order to hold the property taxes for the individual houses at the same
level.

Mr. Keller pointed out that these things were all interconnected in the question of growth and
looking at it on a through-time basis, they must determine if a lower assessment house will begin
to carry a higher or lower percentage of its tax responsibility for the county. He said the subject
then begins to relate to policy in a significant manner because there are groups and individuals
who say that increasing the number of housing is actually going to be cost effective, while others
will disagree. He said one way to measure this is to look at where the county is on the tax spectrum
per typical, average family.

Mr. Keller brought forth the subject of ownership versus renters, noting that it was a subject that
was under much consideration. He said discussions going on in a number of cities (where they
have the capacity to do so) to consider the equation of renter-to-owner ratios in condominiums,
explaining that there was a movement to buy out the condo owners and reestablish the properties
to rentals. He said this was a part of the housing that is beyond affordable housing but comes
back to capacity as it comes back to tax rates and to what rental and housing costs will be at
every point along the price spectrum, from lowest to highest.

Mr. Keller said that the components he mentioned build upon what he believes to be a strong and
well-presented information set. He expressed hope that staff would continue to flesh out the data.

Mr. Keller said that regarding infrastructure, it was known that neighborhoods that have failed
infrastructure are less popular places to live, except to those who cannot afford to live anywhere
else. He said ultimately, a component that would look at the infrastructure needs (going back to
the CIP and CNA) would be interesting to have, as the projections were geospatially located. He
said it would be interesting to consider many of the things that Mr. Dotson has been bringing up
and getting to those. He acknowledged it was 2-4 years out, but that this would add to the
information and fits within growth management.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 17
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



Mr. Keller said that if the county begins to see more rural subdivisions, consideration should be
made as to how they will take these into account and if they should be thought about differently.
He explained that if there is still a higher density in the rural areas in those subdivisions, they are
in some ways a subset of the county’s growth management in the rural areas. He said even if this
was not official policy, the question would be if they should become part of the official policy.

Ms. Firehock asked if staff was able to see a trend in the data (e.g., what percentage of the
Comprehensive Plan designhated units are being built). She asked if it was possible to draw an
overall conclusion (e.g., only 70% of the high end possible units of the recommended
Comprehensive Plan are being built).

Mr. Knuppel replied that at this point, staff would not be able to, but that since they had a spatial
dimension, it could possibly be approached as a case study. He said they have information from
two years before and that for projects that haven’t been proposed yet, there are vacant parcels
they could analyze to determine how they are supposed to be built out. He said over time, it would
be a better way to see what the actual yield is from the land.

Ms. Firehock responded that this would be helpful because it would assist the commission to ask
questions. She said if the commission believes they need to hit a certain number, they can figure
out why they would not be, noting that different areas would produce different answers.

Ms. Firehock recalled Supervisor Dill's comparison between Manhattan and Albemarle County in
one of their work sessions years before in which he talked about being able to fit Albemarle’s
growth area into Manhattan. She said Manhattan is 22.82 square miles and has 1.62 million
people. She said Albemarle’s growth areas are 35 square miles and have, at the high projection,
171,706 people. She clarified that she was not suggesting that the county’s growth areas turn into
Manhattan, but that she wanted to know how the numbers relate to needs for schools. She said
staff could also look at it from the standpoint of their mathematics of open parcels. She said if
housing continues to be put in, then they need land for more school. She said land then needs to
be subtracted in order to build the new schools.

Ms. Firehock brought up transportation needs, noting that Charlottesville was experiencing many
problems with this and density is being placed on many roads that used to be only two lanes wide,
with some having originally be designed for horses. She also mentioned parks and green
systems. She asked staff when they looked at open lands, if they removed parks and green
systems from the calculation of available open space that a house could be grown on.

Mr. Knuppel replied that they did take out existing parks and recreation facilities. He said the
Comprehensive Plan land use maps are the only ones that show the park needs, which did not
count towards the density calculation.

Ms. Firehock said this was good and revisited her question about people needing to attend school,
go shopping, and use the greenways. She said she was interested in the report and grateful for
the data, but she still wanted the county itself to take the data and project out what this would
mean for facilities, if they actually realize the density from the high ends of their Comprehensive
Plan. She said another question would be as to what this would cost. She expressed appreciation
for the earlier comment about modeling the NIMBY factor, as she has heard many members of
the public in past meetings speak at the podium about their concerns dealing with density, and
yet they speak from a very community that has that density.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 18
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



Ms. Firehock expressed that she was not against development, but that she was trying to say that
there was a pushback the county was seeing across the growth areas as people want quality of
life and do not want to be “jammed in like sardines.” She said that the data was absent of the
social dimension of what it means for the county. She acknowledged that the information was
simply data and that staff has created a path for discussion and thought. She stated that she
wanted to see the information be used to paint the picture of the future reality and what this would
actually mean for the county financially and physically. She said the county could then decide if
this was the future they want.

Ms. Firehock said there were many numbers on the Comprehensive Plan maps that members of
the public have raised objections to, expressing that those humbers would be good in another
neighborhood, but not in their own.

Ms. More agreed and said she understood the purpose of the report but pointed out that she
found the word “infrastructure” to only be mentioned in it a couple times. She said she wanted to
see what Ms. Firehock suggested, with the report being used to tell the county where it is going
and how they will pay for it all. She said this gets back to infrastructure and that it may serve staff
well to acknowledge it in the report in some way. She said the commission often hears across all
the localities that the public is unhappy with infrastructure.

Ms. More referenced page 10, which discussed where the county would grow next. She said when
she reads this, she thinks of expansion, and that other people do believe the area should expand.
She cautioned staff, however, to be careful with how this is presented to the community as far as
the need to expand. She said Crozet and other areas were nervous about expansion, and if this
was what the county wants to imply, if staff is considering if the public in those areas want to
expand. She asked what this would look like — whether they mean creating another Crozet
elsewhere, or pushing on the boundaries.

Ms. More referenced the second paragraph on page 28, which discussed the discrepancies that
exist between by-right development and the Crozet Master Plan land use designation, and how
stream buffers and flood plain areas “reduce capacity under the net density calculation. Additional
areas designated as Open Space in the Master Plan contribute to discrepancies between zoning
and Comprehensive Plan scenarios.” She asked why this information was in the Crozet section
and not in other places in the report, as this is how density is calculated, whether it is by right or
rezoning.

Mr. Knuppel replied that the commentary on the difference in land use designations was because
staff had heard a few times from property owners in Crozet about an entire property being
designated as green space, for example. He said staff observed a number of these in Crozet and
were being sensitive to the considerations. He said it was mostly seen on the Route 250 fringe in
part of the development area where there is a large amount of R-1 or R-2 zoning, with many
parcels being shown solely as green space in the plan.

Mr. Knuppel said staff felt it was important to acknowledge that, where they are designating the
areas entirely, they are setting up a discrepancy. He said staff wrestled with this with Pantops,
noting that the parcels on the corner of State Farm Boulevard and Peter Jefferson Parkway are
shown as parks in the original plan, and conversation was needed about what could happen and
what was realistic. He said this was not to say that preserving the scenic buffer and corridor was
not important. He said that when there is a zoning ordinance that does not match the
Comprehensive Plan, there was uncertainty involved.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 19
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



Ms. More pointed out that this was what staff wants to be careful not to send a message that
those things are not important. She said that Crozet has been told before that they are not
producing the numbers that they need to, and that the implication in the paragraph she referenced
was driving at this. She also pointed out that there were properties that were believed would come
in higher that have gone by-right and, in exchange for that, there are by-right R-6 properties that
come in quite dense. She said she did not know if this was ever part of the ultimate buildout
calculation, to offset those that came in lower versus the ones that come in higher.

Ms. More said page 29 addresses the other side of Crozet and that the Pleasant Green plan is
by-right and will be over 200 units, noting that staff did not yet have this information. She said she
would be careful about the paragraph referenced, as it may hit a nerve with some Crozetians that
they are not producing units.

Ms. More said that before 2008, the Board of Supervisors voted to approve over 4,000 units to
Crozet. She said looking at the history of Crozet and understanding why it sometimes hits a nerve
with citizens when there is an implication that they are not producing the units they should be,
there was the Development Area Initiative Project with the final report dated August 20, 1999.
She said in Volume 3, consultants were brought in to do the calculations and that for Crozet, low,
high, and maximum populations were considered. She said the consultants recommended that
for Crozet, the maximum ideal population would be 12,198. She said this was the number
presented to the community in the first Master Plan, and thus Crozetians will often bring up this
number.

Ms. More said that when this went to the Board for a vote, what came through was 18,000, and
sometimes 22,000 is even mentioned, which was the absolute max that came out of the report
that was done for that project. She explained that this was why the 18,000 number existed in the
plan now but at the time of Master Planning, the community was told differently. She explained
that when Master Planning is done now, there are people who no longer show up because they
were told 12,000 and what went into the plan was 18,000. She said there was a huge violation of
trust that happened back then that, as a community, the county needs to rebuild and get people
to reengage, letting them know that the county is listening.

Ms. More expressed that she needed to say this because many times, there is an idea that when
the community pushes back to have things be less dense (particularly around the 250 corridor),
the community is somehow failing to meet an obligation that the community didn’t agree to. She
urged staff that as they approach the community with the report to consider that the paragraph
reads that the numbers weren’t coming in as high as the county would expect.

Ms. More said when then considering the current population, Crozet is at 8,370 and the Master
Plan predicted them at 12,000 by the year 2030. She added that there was the 18,000 number
that was then put in, and thus there was an edge with the community to work with as staff goes
through its Master Plan review because of how the other plans were handled.

Ms. More said that overall, staff did a great job of capturing many numbers, expressing hope that
the county would be able to use the report to move forward with things county-wide, as well as in
hot spots such as Rio where there are known infrastructure issues. She said she hoped that the
county doesn'’t look at the documents on their own, but to consider ways to mesh them together
to have a plan that makes sense.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 20
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



Ms. Riley said that staff listed on page 6 reasons why it is difficult to establish trends for multi-
family housing construction. She said she was not questioning the reasons but wondered whether
or not that difficulty might be overcome in the next rendition of the report. She said it was important
to be able to track this and asked if this could be improved on in the next version of the report.

Mr. Knuppel replied that there are peak corridors where a project comes online and because of
the scale of the projects, it has been difficult for staff to say that there is a strong multi-family trend.
He said if staff looked at a longer time period, they may be able to see a trend. He said moving
forward, they look at Certificate of Occupancy information, noting that there were currently many
apartment multi-family complexes under construction. He said there aren’t many projects and that
when there are, they are more like a peak event or surge of new units coming online, explaining
that it makes it difficult (even with the quarterly CO reports) to see a trend because it is very
heavily influenced by one building and 50 units coming online. He said in the future, he hoped
that staff could find a better way to analyze this.

Ms. Riley said it was important data for the commission to have, and that particularly, it was known
from the Regional Housing Study that there was a growing demand for rental housing. She said
the report does a terrific job of particularly outlining the ownership units and associated trends,
but that multi-family needed to be better understood.

Ms. Riley said staff did a great job of providing data around density, as it was not just a matter of
how many units in any given area, but how the density is being distributed throughout the county.
She said this gets back to how it links to CIP and equitable distributions of CIP funds. She said
she didn’t know if the report was intended to cover all those kinds of questions, but that the
guestion was as to how the report links to the identification of CIP needs and prioritization
(particularly given transportation and school needs). She asked as to where the county was
determining whether or not there was equitable distribution of the CIP funds to support the data
that is shown in the report, that the increased density is in the urban ring around Charlottesville.

Mr. Bivins said that the report asks, “How will we grow?” He suggested that the report instead
read, “How may we grow?” He said this softens the headline in a way that people may not find as
stark.

Mr. Dotson recalled that Mr. Bivins had described the report as a “story.” He disagreed, stating
that it was a picture. He said the saying was that “a picture is worth a thousand words,” but
disagreed with this. He said that a good picture will generate 10,000 words, and that the
commission had just proven it. He said it was important to keep in mind the purpose of the report,
which was to look at rates of development and to conduct a capacity analysis. He said it was a
wonderful report and was the best they had ever had, and though it generates many questions,
the report could not address all of those.

Mr. Dotson said to him, the key question was to whether or not the county has enough land. He
said that when he moved to the area in 1978, he tried to meet with other planners and what he
kept hearing was that Charlottesville was built out, landlocked, and done. He noted that it was not
built out and not done.

Mr. Dotson said that as they consider the question of not having enough land (even if the county
was built out), there are good and bad consequences. He said one of the good consequences is
that there is enough pressure to stimulate redevelopment. He said if there is adequate land for a
continuation of the past, redevelopment will not take place. He said if there is a degree of buildout,

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 21
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



there is increased density as another way to get around the issue. He said there would also be
increased transit usage, and there could also be a more sustainable community. He said perhaps
there was not quite enough land, but perhaps some good consequences would result from it.

Mr. Dotson said that not having enough land could also have some negative consequences such
as gentrification, the price of land increasing (which would increase both housing and business
costs), and the loss of feel and character. He said that for him, the things that he cited as positive
consequences were part of the Comprehensive Plan goals as far as encouraging more density,
transit, redevelopment, and a more sustainable pattern. He said gentrification, land prices, and
loss of feel are things to try to mitigate as a consequence of this. He said he was not convinced
that if the county just barely had enough land, that this was a problem. He said it could actually
be a blessing to achieving some of the goals.

Mr. Dotson said the report stated that it was provided for information and that no action was
required. He disagreed with this, explaining that it would be useful to the commission to make
some findings based on the report and to forward those findings to the Board of Supervisors. He
said this did not mean that the Board couldn’t see the report before the commission makes some
findings. He said he was picturing a one-page document that would present the commission’s
findings about the report, noting that this could not be done that evening. He concluded that the
report needed to be brought back for another work session so that the commission could work on
the findings.

Mr. Keller asked Ms. Falkenstein if this could work in the schedule.

Ms. Falkenstein replied yes, saying that they could find some time in October and if not then,
definitely in November.

Ms. Firehock asked Mr. Dotson if “findings” could include recommendations on how to use the
data in county planning.

Mr. Dotson replied yes, as long as the subject is not exhausted.
Ms. Firehock agreed.

Ms. Spain agreed with Mr. Dotson’s thoughts that the commission was asking the report to bear
much weight that was not possible, from staff's standpoint. She added that the “story” was
included on page 5, in the first graph that shows the increase in residential construction activity in
the development area. She said a couple years before, this much evidence did not exist, and so
this strengthens the goal and was the whole point of having the growth boundaries. She said it
dips slightly for 2018, but that this may even out when the 2019 figures are available. She said
this was a big item and something that should be in headlines. She said if the commission
prepares a findings report for the Board, they should emphasize this, and it should be one of the
main points.

Mr. Carrazana said staff deserves credit for all the work, noting that the county sometimes
receives help from the Engineering school and from other data experts. He said the report
demonstrates a lot of thought and great work. He said staff has the building blocks and they are
showing data analysis in a way they did not have before. He pointed out that this was just the
beginning and that he would hate for it to end by simply cleaning it up two years from then.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 22
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



Mr. Carrazana disagreed with some of the commissioners, stating that this was a matter of looking
at much more than land capacity. He said the report could do this and that it was a good goal to
have data that analyzes capacity to determine if there is enough land to meet growth projections.
He reiterated a previous comment that projections are always wrong, and it was a matter of how
wrong they are, noting that he spent a career confirming this.

Mr. Carrazana said it has also been said that the word “infrastructure” was not nearly said enough
in the report. He said that in terms of infrastructure, this related to transit and schools. He asked
how the report would inform the CIP, acknowledging that perhaps it was putting a lot on the
document, but pointing out that it was a base document with data and should be used to inform
all those areas.

Mr. Carrazana asked how the report aligned with the School Board report that was produced a
few months before. He asked if it was consistent or if there were variances and, if so, why.

Mr. Carrazana said he liked the fact that the report consisted of building blocks that drilled down
to neighborhoods. He said this was powerful in beginning to understand the neighborhoods,
noting that staff was able to do and answer many guestions from the commissioners, who have
spent a great deal of time in those neighborhoods. He suggested that staff continue to develop
the base knowledge of those areas, which would only make for a better document. He suggested
they talk to the commissioners, the people and developers in those neighborhoods in order to
come up with a better model that would trickle not only to the entirety of the county, but that it
would also layer with other components, such as transit.

Mr. Carrazana proposed that the areas that are not desirable are not always the ones that are
failing in infrastructure. He said that, in fact, very desirable areas begin to fail in infrastructure
because the infrastructure is not keeping up with the growth, adding that there were many
examples of this in the county. He said layering the infrastructure with the growth, determining
the potential, considering what is in the pipeline, and what is needed would results in a
recommendations piece. He said the report could end with some kind of trend that could lead to
actionable steps, which would be the CIP and where the county is spending its money and energy.

Mr. Carrazana said he believed the report had a lot of potential and that staff was only scratching
the surface. He said if only land capacity is considered, the county was missing the mark.

Ms. Spain pointed out that the commission was creating many expectations and clarified that they
did not expect Mr. Knuppel to do all of this, but that they were simply discussing and figuring out
how they could turn the report into something useful for the Board.

Ms. More thanked staff for the work they did. She acknowledged that the commission was asking
a lot from the report, agreeing that they should be and recognizing that this potentially puts a great
amount of work onto Mr. Knuppel. She said perhaps this was a message that the commission
sends to the Board in what Mr. Dotson suggested, cautioning that they should be careful about
how to approach this and how it would be advertised. She said it was an action item, and if the
commission was to make recommendations, consideration should be made as to how they will
ensure they are being clear with the public.

Ms. More said that the commission has asked a lot from the report, but if it will be taken to the
different CACs and community, they will ask many questions as well. She said therefore, perhaps
the commission’s comments will be helpful as staff moves forward into the community, even

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 23
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



though those comments address items that the report perhaps did not intend to provide at its
current level.

Ms. Firehock said she was excited to think about the county institutionalizing the methodology so
that, as they develop more figures in the coming years, they can begin to look back at how
accurate their assumptions were. She said those assumptions could be tweaked if needed,
transforming the report into a more predictive tool. She acknowledged that recessions can
happen, but that the report could become a useful set of data for future projection planning, more
so than it was at present time as staff did not have enough years of data to be able to make a
significant conclusion.

Mr. Bivins suggested that if staff was looking to have a work session with the Board of
Supervisors, the Hollymead page of the report would be an area they could have a discussion on.
He said with the impact of what will happen at Brook Hill, at North Point, and what could happen
at Hollymead, the county could possibly place 4,000 households of various types there. He said
the question was to what this would mean, noting that it wasn’t a place like Jack Jouett or Rio
East, which he typically looks to as the community’s urban center, but was stretching it up Route
29. He said that if the Board of Supervisors is trying to get ahead of this in a thoughtful way, the
report could give the Board an opportunity to think about how to prepare for the impacts.

Mr. Bivins continued that there were many people in this area and if the proposals are built out to
even half of what is being suggested there, it could have negative impacts. He indicated that the
UVA Foundation’s properties there were not in the mix.

Mr. Carrazana agreed.

Mr. Bivins said that the Foundation has been discussing turning some of its park into mixed-use
parks. He addressed Mr. Keller, suggesting that perhaps the commission has a lab on this topic.

Mr. Keller said there was another piece that hadn’t been discussed, which was doing away with
R-1. He said this could be 2-4 years out and that changes to the zoning in Charlottesville have
been observed.

Mr. Keller thanked Ms. Jodie Filardo and Ms. Amelia McCulley for attending the meeting, as well
as for giving the report more form and going further with it. He said it was great to have leaders
of Community Development present to hear about the work done as well as the discussion the
commissioners had about it.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 24
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



Adjournment

At 8:55 p.m., the Commission adjourned to October 8, 2019 Albemarle County Planning

Commission meeting, 6:00 p.m., Lane Auditorium, Second Floor, County Office Building, 401
Mclntire Road, Charlottesville, Virginia.

David Benish, Interim Director of Planning

(Recorded by Carolyn S. Shaffer, Clerk to Planning Commission & Planning Boards, and
transcribed by Golden Transcription Services)

Approved by Planning
Commission

Date: 11/05/2019
Initials: CSS

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

25
FINAL MINUTES September 24, 2019



